
 
CANBY UTILITY 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
DECEMBER 13, 2022 

7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

The Board of Directors and staff have resumed in-person meetings.  The public is invited to attend the meeting 
virtually or in person at Canby Utility’s office. 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. AGENDA 
 Additions, Deletions or Corrections to the Meeting Agenda 

III. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Approval of Agenda 
 Approval of Regular Board Meeting and Executive Session Minutes of 

November 8, 2022, and Work Session Minutes of November 29, 2022 (pp. 
1-16) 

 Approval of Write-Offs  
 Approval of Payment of Water and Electric Bills 

IV. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS Citizen’s wanting to speak 
virtually, please email or call the Board Secretary-Clerk by 4:30 p.m. on 
December 13, 2022 with your name, the topic you would like to speak on, and 
contact information: bbenson@canbyutility.org or 503-263-4312.   

V. AUDIT REPORT for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 – Introduction by Carol 
Sullivan, General Manager. Presentation and Review by Julie Desimone, Moss 
Adams, LLC (pg. 17 plus Separate Item) 

VI. RECOMMENDATION  Approve Memorandum of Understanding with the 
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers for a 4-10 Work Week – Barbara 
Benson, Human Resources/Administration Manager (pp. 18-20) 

VII. BOARD REPORT 
 Chair Comments 
 Board Member Comments 

VIII. STAFF REPORTS   
General Manager Updates 

IX. ADJOURN 

mailto:bbenson@canbyutility.org


CANBY UTILITY  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 8, 2022 
Board Present: Chair Thompson; Members Hill, Horrax, and Molamphy 

Staff Present: Carol Sullivan, General Manager; Barbara Benson, Board Secretary; Jason 
Berning, Operations Manager; Cindy Dittmar, Customer Service 
Supervisor; and Jason Peterson, Operations Field Supervisor 

Others Present:  Joe Brennan 

Chair Thompson called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Chair Thompson presented the meeting agenda for consideration. She asked for any additions, 
deletions, or corrections to the meeting agenda, and there were none.   

Chair Thompson presented the consent agenda for approval. Member Molamphy made the 
*MOTION to approve the consent agenda, consisting of the meeting agenda, regular meeting
minutes of October 11, 2022, write-offs in the amount of $774.64, payment of the electric and
water department bills in the amount of $1,016,390.17. Member Hill seconded, and the motion
passed unanimously.

Chair Thompson asked for citizen input on non-agenda items, and there was none. 

Human Resources/Administration Manager Barbara Benson presented a resolution to update 
Canby Utility’s banking services for the Share the Warmth bill assistance program that will 
move the existing account to another banking institution. Benson explained the issues staff has 
faced in updating the key users and signature authority on the account. Canby Utility has 
complied with all requests for documentation and approvals; however, after submitting the 
information, they continued to request more documents. As a result of these challenges, staff 
reached out to Columbia Bank, which services all of Canby Utility's other banking accounts. 
Columbia Bank only needs the Board to approve a resolution authorizing the opening of the 
account and the designated signers. Moving this account to Columbia Bank will also improve 
operations so that staff only needs to go to one bank for all of Canby Utility's business. After a 
brief discussion, Member Molamphy made the *MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 311, 
updating the Canby Utility Board’s banking services for the Share the Warmth bill assistance 
program.    Member Horrax seconded, and the motion passed 4 to 0. 

Chair Thompson said that she had not heard anything from the City of Canby on the recruitment 
to fill the vacancy on the Board. Board Secretary Barb Benson added that their website does not 
show the vacancy and that she could contact them to see if they advertised the opening.  

1



Canby Utility 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
Member Molamphy asked about planning to fund the future water treatment plant construction. 
Operations Manager Jason Berning shared that a meeting was held that day on the Water Master 
Plan update progress, and that topic came up in discussion. The updated plan will drive the new 
treatment plant’s timeline. Berning shared that the cities of Wilsonville and Lake Oswego built 
new water treatment plants, which may be an excellent resource for information. The final draft 
of the Master Plan is expected in February. Chair Thompson also asked about the water system 
development charge updates. General Manager Carol Sullivan confirmed that the system 
development charges are updated annually, and a discussion ensued.  
 
Customer Service Supervisor Cindy Dittmar presented an update on the Red Flag Rules. The 
staff has not experienced any incidents of identity theft. Dittmar talked briefly about the training 
on the Red Flag Rules, and that staff is diligent in ensuring compliance in their daily practices.  
 
Human Resources/Administration Manager Barbara Benson gave an update on the four 10-hour 
workweek schedule. She stated that staff plans to bring back a revised Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between Canby Utility and IBEW Local 125 next month for the Board’s 
consideration. The recommendation to continue the schedule was partly based on an employee 
survey. Benson shared some of the employee’s responses to the survey. She also reviewed the 
outage and overtime impacts due to the schedule change. Two outages occurred on a Friday 
during regular work hours, resulting in overtime that would not have happened if the office had 
been open on Fridays. The cost of that overtime was $762.25. All other outages were outside of 
regular operating hours. She also compared employee absences that resulted in a decrease in 
leave taken under the new schedule. Benson said that staff could not compare the costs of closing 
the facility an extra day since we need more data for the comparison. The operations department 
moved to the new facility December last year. Customer Service Supervisor Cindy Dittmar 
reported that the customers had expressed their support for the new schedule. She has received 
one complaint. Customers are utilizing the extended hours of operation by coming in early and 
later. Operations Manager Jason Berning stated that outages and emergency locates have 
occurred during the extended hours resulting in reduced after-hours call-outs. Benson noted that 
Canby Utility would be in negotiations with the IBEW union next spring, and this MOU 
agreement, if approved, will expire on June 30, 2023.   The Board appreciated the data presented 
and agreed that staff should bring the MOU to the Board in December for approval.   
 
Benson also reported on the upcoming employee recognition event, scheduled for December 3 at 
the Willamette Valley Country Club. Benson reviewed the planned activities for the evening. 
 
Benson also reported that the Board would have an anti-harassment and non-discrimination 
training workshop on Tuesday, November 29, at 3:00 p.m. The training will be virtual, but the 
boardroom will be open to any members of the public that want to attend. City/County Insurance 
Services will provide the training at no cost. 
  
General Manager Carol Sullivan presented the fourth-quarter Executive Financial Summary. 
Sullivan reviewed the profit resulting from operations and capital contributions for the fiscal year 

2



Canby Utility 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
ending June 30, 2022. The electric operating profit was $1,384,529, plus capital contributions of 
$1,289,341, for a total net income of $2,673,870. The water operating profit was $511,641, plus 
the capital contributions of $2,454,337, for a total net income of $2,965,978.  
 
Sullivan then compared the operations with capital contributions to the budget. The electric 
fund's net income was over budget by $719,799. The year-to-date operating revenue is $243,878 
under budget, mainly due to less residential and industrial sales. The operating expenses are  
$857,026 under budget, mainly due to vacant positions, staff turnover, depreciation, lower BPA 
conservation payments, and more labor capitalization. The capital contributions are $134,399 
over budget due to more hook-ups and infrastructure contributed by contractors. The change in 
net assets is $719,799 over budget, mainly due to less operating expenses.  
 
The water fund was over budget by $889,946. The year-to-date operating revenue is $155,778 
over budget, mainly due to higher residential and multi-family sales. The total operating 
expenses are $154,114 under budget, mainly due to vacant positions, staff turnover, and labor 
capitalization. The capital contributions are $519,937 over budget, mainly due to contributions of 
infrastructure by developers and system development charges. The change in net assets is 
$889,946 over budget, mainly due to contributed capital, higher sales, and lower expenses.  
 
Sullivan then reviewed the cash reserves summary. This summary compares Canby Utility's 
current cash reserves to the year-end target for June 30, 2022. The electric reserves are under the 
target by $138,565. The water reserves are over the target by $1,451,937. Discussion ensued 
regarding being over and under target, Canby’s newly annexed Area J, and impacts anticipated 
with the rising interest rates and construction curtailing. 
 
Sullivan reported that staff attended a meeting with members from the Canby Rotary, Canby 
Fire, and Direct Link to discuss their emergency response vehicle project to provide the 
community with a place to charge phones and contact loved ones in the event of an emergency.   
 
Sullivan said she had attended Zoom meetings for the Molalla River Association, the Oregon 
Water Utility Council, and the Oregon Municipal Electric Utilities.  
 
On October 26, the Oregon Health Authority was on site to conduct the water system survey. 
This survey occurs every three years. Staff is continuing to provide information to them on water 
loss information.  
 
Member Molamphy made the *MOTION to go into Executive Session according to ORS 
192.660(2)(i) to discuss the performance of a public employee. Member Hill seconded, and the 
motion passed 4-0.  
 
The regular meeting recessed at 7:37 p.m. 
 
The regular meeting reconvened at 8:10 p.m. 
 

3



Canby Utility 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

Discussion ensued regarding the status of the exempt employee salary study that was tabled in 
July 2021. 

Member Hill made the *MOTION to adjourn the meeting.   Member Horrax seconded, and the 
motion passed unanimously. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 

Melody Thompson, Chair David Horrax, Member 

Robert Hill, Member  John Molamphy, Member 

Vacant Barbara Benson, Board Secretary 

4



CANBY UTILITY  
EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 8, 2022 

Board Present: Chair Thompson; Members Hill, Horrax, and Molamphy 

Staff Present: Carol Sullivan, General Manager  

The Executive Session was opened at 7:37 p.m. by Chair Thompson, in the Conference 
Room of the Canby Utility Board office, pursuant to ORS 192.660(2) (i) for the purpose 
of discussing performance of a public employee. 

There being no further business, the Executive Session adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

Melody Thompson, Chair David Horrax, Member 

Robert Hill, Member John Molamphy, Member  

Vacant Barbara Benson, Board Secretary 

5



 
CANBY UTILITY  

BOARD WORK SESSION MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 29, 2022 

 
 
The Board of Directors work session was held virtually.   The public was invited to attend the meeting virtually or 

in-person at Canby Utility's office. 
 
Board Present: Chair Thompson; Members Hill, Horrax, and Molamphy 
 
Staff Present: Carol Sullivan, General Manager; Barbara Benson, Board Secretary 
 
Others Present:  Tamara Russell, Deputy General Counsel, City/County Insurance Services 
 
 
Chair Thompson called the Work Session to order at 3:00 p.m.   
 
Tamara Russell, Deputy General Counsel for City/County Insurance Services provided training 
for the board members on public official discrimination and harassment.   
 
Member Molamphy made the *MOTION to adjourn the meeting.   Member Hill seconded, and 
the motion passed unanimously. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:03 p.m. 
 
A copy of the presentation is attached for reference.  
 
 
 
 
             
Melody Thompson, Chair   David Horrax, Member 
 
 
 
             
Robert Hill, Member      John Molamphy, Member 
 
 
 
        
Barbara Benson, Board Secretary  

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



154 NW First Avenue ∙ PO Box 1070 ∙ Canby ∙ OR   97013 ∙ Tel: 503-266-1156 ∙ Fax: 503-263-8621 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
December 8, 2022 

 
 
TO: Chair Thompson, Member Hill, Member Horrax, and Member Molamphy 
 
FROM: Carol Sullivan, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Audit Report Fiscal Year End June 30, 2022 
 
 
Our auditors, Moss Adams LLP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants, 
have completed Canby Utility’s annual audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Moss 
Adams has been performing our audit since 2015. This year we continued our positive 
working relationship and completed the audit on site. Canby Utility received an 
unmodified or clean opinion, the highest form of assurance.  Included with the audit is the 
Communications with Those Charged with Governance.   
 
Julie Desimone from Moss Adams will present the audit at the board meeting.  Julie will 
be able to answer any questions you may have. 

17



 
MEMORANDUM 
December 8, 2022 

 
TO: Chair Thompson; Members Hill, Horrax, and Molamphy 
 
FROM: Barbara Benson, Human Resources/Administration Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Recommendation to Approve Memorandum of Understanding with the 

IBEW Local 125 to extend the 4/10 Workweek Schedule  
 
Suggested Motion: I move to authorize the General Manager to sign the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 125, for the 
Office and Water Workers and Electric Workers, extending the 4/10 Workweek schedule 
until June 30, 2023.  
 
Background:  Last month, staff presented to the Board the results of an employee survey 
and the impacts of changing from a 5/8 workweek to a 4/10 workweek with favorable 
outcomes.  Canby Utility and the IBEW are in agreement to extend the new schedule until 
the collective bargaining agreement expires, June 30, 2023. 
 
Attached is the draft of the Memorandum of Understanding.   
 
We will be available to answer questions you may have.   

18



 

M.O.U.: 4/10 Schedule.    

 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
BETWEEN 

CANBY UTILITY BOARD and I.B.E.W. LOCAL UNION NO. 125 

Schedule Change  

Electrical Unit 

Office and Water Unit 

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into by and between the Canby Utility Board 
(Board) and I.B.E.W. Local Union No. 125 (Union) and is for both bargaining units: Electrical 
and Office & Water (O&W). 

Whereas, the parties desire to extend a schedule change until the end of the current collective 
bargaining agreement, June 30, 2023.   Currently, employees have been working a 4/10 schedule, 
using four (4) workdays and 10-hour shifts on a trial period to provide time for evaluating  the 
ability to meet operational and business needs and receive employee input.   

Whereas, an employee survey was distributed and the consensus was to continue the 4/10 
schedule, and operational and business needs are being met.  

Now therefore, it is hereby agreed by and between the parties as follows: 

1. This agreement  will expire on June 30, 2023, when both bargaining unit’s collective 
bargaining agreements expire.  

2. The work schedule for all bargaining unit employees will be a 4/10 schedule.   
Workdays are Monday through Thursday with 10-hour shifts up to June 30, 2023.   

3. Hours of work for all staff, except Mechanic/Utility Worker, will be from 7:00 a.m. to 
5:30 p.m. with a 30-minute unpaid meal period taken consistent with the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement conditions and Bureau of Labor and Industry’s rules.   
Specifically for the Mechanic/Utility Worker position, hours of work will be from 6:00 
a.m. to 4:30 p.m.    

4. Daily overtime thresholds, as found in Article 9.1 for both units, will be suspended.   
During the period of this agreement, work in excess of ten (10) hours per day will be 
paid as overtime.  

5. Pay Days. As provided by Article 9.5 (Electrical) and Article 9.4  (O&W), pays days 
for the duration of the agreement will be moved to the 7th and 22nd of the month. 

6. Working Out of Class:  As provided by Article 9.6 (Electrical) and Article 9.5 (O&W), 
the four (4) hour threshold will be suspended, and during the trial period, the threshold 
will be five (5) hours when calculating eligibility for Out of Class compensation.   

7. The Day After Thanksgiving, as found in Article 10 (both units), will not be recognized 
or compensated.   

19



 

M.O.U.: 4/10 Schedule.    

The Personal Day (1.5), as found in Article 10.3 (both units), will not be recognized 
nor compensated in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023.  

8. During the trial period, Article 10.2 (both units) will be modified as follows:   
"Whenever one of the holidays set forth above falls during an employee’s vacation, 
such employee shall be entitled to one (1) additional day of vacation or the pay 
thereof. In the event a holiday should fall on a Saturday, the holiday will be observed 
on that day as a day off, and employees will accrue ten (10) hours of Personal Leave, 
as identified in Article 10.3 (both units). If a holiday should fall on a Friday, the 
preceding Thursday shall be observed as the holiday and should a holiday fall on a 
Sunday, then the following Monday shall be observed as the holiday, however, 
should Christmas Eve fall on a Sunday, the holiday will be observed that day as a day 
off, and employees will accrue ten (10) hours of Personal Leave, as identified in 
Article 10.3 (both units). These provisions do not preclude the right to assign 
overtime for operational needs.    

9. This agreement does not change sick leave, vacation, or any other accruals in the 
existing Collective Bargaining Agreements unless expressly stated in this agreement.    

10. This agreement does not set precedent or existing conditions.   
11. This agreement may not be extended, and the only continuation of a 4/10 schedule must 

be a result of reaching a new mutual written agreement.   
12. Disputes between the parties arising from this agreement are exclusively limited to the 

grievance process of the Collective Bargaining Agreements, respectively.  
13. This agreement does not require ratification and is effective upon signature below. 

 

Upon execution, this day ______, December 2022. 

 

FOR THE UNION:     FOR CANBY UTILITY BOARD 

_______________________________  __________________________________ 

Tim Titus      Carol Sullivan   
Business Representative    General Manager 
 

DATE:  ________________________  DATE:  ___________________________ 

 

20


	11-8-22 Minutes.edited
	CANBY UTILITY
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	NOVEMBER 8, 2022


	11-8-22 Minutes
	CANBY UTILITY
	EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES
	NOVEMBER 8, 2022


	11-29-22 Work Session Minutes
	CANBY UTILITY
	BOARD WORK SESSION MINUTES
	NOVEMBER 29, 2022


	WS Presentation - Attach to minutes
	Board Audit Memo
	MEMORANDUM

	IBEW MOU Recommendation 12 2022
	MEMORANDUM

	4-10 MOU extension Final Draft 12-8-22
	MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

	ADP2E01.tmp
	AGENDA
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. AGENDA
	III. CONSENT AGENDA
	IV. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS Citizen’s wanting to speak virtually, please email or call the Board Secretary-Clerk by 4:30 p.m. on December 13, 2022 with your name, the topic you would like to speak on, and contact information: bbenson@canbyut...
	V. AUDIT REPORT for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 – Introduction by Carol Sullivan, General Manager. Presentation and Review by Julie Desimone, Moss Adams, LLC (pg. 17 plus Separate Item)
	VI. RECOMMENDATION  Approve Memorandum of Understanding with the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers for a 4-10 Work Week – Barbara Benson, Human Resources/Administration Manager (pp. 18-20)
	VII. BOARD REPORT
	VIII. STAFF REPORTS
	IX. ADJOURN





